
LEP - Transport for Lancashire Committee

Tuesday, 5th June, 2018 in Committee Room 'D' (The Henry 
Bolingbroke Room) - County Hall, Preston, at 2.00 pm

Agenda

Part I (Items Publicly Available)

1. Welcome and Apologies for Absence  

2. Declarations of Interest  

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 28 March 2018  (Pages 1 - 4)
The Committee are asked to agree that the Minutes of the last meeting held 
on 28 March 2018 be confirmed and signed by the Chair.

4. Matters Arising  

5. Furthergate Link Road Funding Application  (Pages 5 - 14)

6. Transforming Cities Fund  (Pages 15 - 16)

7. Any Other Business  

8. Date of Next Meeting  
The next meeting of the Transport for Lancashire Committee will be held on 
Tuesday 16 October 2018 at 2pm in Committee Room D at County Hall, 
Preston. 

9. Exclusion of Press and Public  
The Committee is asked to consider whether, under Section 100A(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, it considers that the public should be excluded 
from the meeting during consideration of the following items of business on 
the grounds that there would be a likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in the appropriate paragraph of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 as indicated against the heading to the item.

Part II (Private and Confidential)

10. Transport for the North Strategic Development Corridor Studies Update  



- 2 -

Verbal update and PowerPoint presentation.

(Not for Publication - Exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. It is considered that in all 
the circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.)



LEP - Transport for Lancashire Committee

Minutes of the Meeting held on Wednesday, 28th March, 2018 at 2.00 pm 
at the Committee Room 'D' (The Henry Bolingbroke Room) - County 
Hall, Preston

Present

County Councillor Geoff Driver CBE (Chairman) 

             Graham Cowley Councillor Fred Jackson
Councillor Phil Riley

Also In Attendance

Mike Cliffe, Strategic Transport Manager, Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council
Dave Colbert, Specialist Advisor - Transportation, Lancashire County Council 
County Councillor Michael Green, Cabinet Member for Economic Development and 
Planning
Martin Kelly, Director of Economic Development, Lancashire County Council
Richard Perry, Department for Transport
Mike Sinnott, Highways England
Cath Rawcliffe, Democratic Services, Lancashire County Council

1.  Welcome and Apologies for Absence

County Councillor Driver welcomed everyone to the meeting and noted that 
apologies had been received from Jeremy Walker, Transport Policy Manager, 
Blackpool Council.

2.  Declarations of Interest

None declared.

3.  Minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2018

That the Minutes of the last meeting held on the 10 January 2018 be confirmed 
and signed by the Chair.

4.  Matters Arising

There were no matters arising from the Minutes.

5.  Transport for the North Draft Strategic Transport Plan Public Consultation

Dave Colbert, Specialist Advisor - Transportation, Lancashire County Council, 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



presented a report on Transport for the North's (TfN) Draft Strategic Transport 
Plan Public Consultation.  

The report expressed broad support for the draft plan but identified three key 
strategic concerns.  These related to proposals for the development and delivery 
of Northern Powerhouse Rail / Long Term Rail Strategy, the Major Road Network 
and Strategic Development Corridor priorities. 

The report also recommended that a number of issues should be brought to the 
attention of TfN. These included the long-term strategic transport requirements 
set out in the Lancashire Strategic Transport Prospectus relevant to the Strategic 
Development Corridors and the issue of freight transport. 

The Committee was informed that the report reflected the proposed response of 
the County Council. 

Following discussion, it was agreed that the concerns identified in the report 
should form the basis of a submission by the LEP to the TfN consultation.  

Following further discussion, it was agreed that officers from Lancashire County 
Council would liaise with Blackburn with Darwen Council and Blackpool Council 
with a view to ensuring consistency across the responses from the LEP, the 
County Council and the two Unitary Councils.
 
It was also proposed that any response to the consultation should include an 
affirmation of the positive aspects of the Strategic Transport Plan and 
demonstrate the value of the proposed amendments to the Plan.

Resolved:   That the strategic concerns and issues raised in the Committee 
report form the basis for a LEP submission to Transport for the North's Draft 
Strategic Transport Plan Public Consultation.  

6.  Any Other Business

Dave Colbert presented an oral report on the Department for Transport's recently 
announced Transforming Cities Fund. 

The Committee was informed that the Fund is part of the wider National 
Productivity Investment Fund aimed at driving up productivity and spreading 
prosperity through investment in public and sustainable transport in the larger city 
regions in England.  It is expected that the fund will also support the delivery of 
the Government's Industrial Strategy, taking a place-based approach to 
investment in England's city regions.  

The Committee was advised that the Government's key objective was to make a 
small number of large investments to drive up connectivity to centres of 
employment.  Funding would be available over a four year period.

The Government would be seeking evidence of the case for investment, the wider 
fit with other stakeholders and investment programmes and the ambition of a city 
region to improve specific routes.  Successful city regions would also need to 
demonstrate clear prioritisation and that significant investment on a small number 

Page 2



of corridors would have a big impact.

Following discussion, it was proposed that Lancashire County Council, Blackburn 
with Darwen Council and Blackpool Council would explore the possibility of 
sharing information and compiling and submitting joint bids.

The Committee noted that a progress report would be presented to the next 
meeting on the 5 June 2018 and that the closing date for applications was the 8th 
June 2018. 

Resolved:-  That the report be noted and that a progress report be presented to 
the next meeting of the Transport for Lancashire Committee on the 5th June 2018.    

7.  Date of Next Meeting

It was noted that the next meeting would be held on Tuesday 5 June 2018 at 2pm 
in Committee Room 'D', County Hall, Preston

Page 3



Page 4



LEP – Sub Committee

LEP - Transport for Lancashire Committee

Private and Confidential: No

Date: Tuesday, 5 June 2018

Furthergate Link Road Funding Application
Appendix 'A' refers

Report Author: Dave Colbert, Tel: 01772 534501, Specialist Advisor Transport Planning
dave.colbert@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The Furthergate Link Road scheme comprises a new link road and associated 
junction improvements in the A678 corridor linking Blackburn town centre with the 
M65 Junction 6 at Whitebirk.  The existing highway network in this corridor operates 
close to capacity, with high volumes of traffic resulting in congestion and unreliable 
journey times as well as creating environmental issues for local residents.  In addition 
to addressing these problems, the scheme will unlock new areas of land for potential 
development.

In accordance with the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership's Assurance Framework, 
Blackburn with Darwen Council has submitted a strategic outline business case for 
funding approval.  The consultants Jacobs have undertaken an independent 
assessment of the strategic outline business case on behalf of the Lancashire 
Enterprise Partnership.  Jacobs are satisfied that the project has been developed to 
the expected standard and recommend that funding approval be granted.

Recommendation

The Committee is asked to consider the attached strategic outline business case 
report prepared by Jacobs and recommend the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership 
Board grant the scheme a maximum £3.44m Growth Deal funding at its next meeting 
on 26th June 2018.

Background and Advice

The Furthergate Link Road scheme is one of three infrastructure packages comprising 
the 'Pennine Gateways' project, which aims to support the delivery of new homes, new 
businesses and jobs in three specific growth areas in Blackburn, whilst at the same 
time alleviating congestion on key routes.  It comprises a new link road and associated 
junction improvements in the A678 corridor linking Blackburn town centre with the M65 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Junction 6 at Whitebirk.  The existing highway network in this corridor operates close 
to capacity, with high volumes of traffic resulting in congestion and unreliable journey 
times as well as creating environmental issues for local residents.  In addition to 
addressing these problems, the scheme will unlock new areas of land for potential 
development.

In accordance with the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership's Assurance Framework, 
Blackburn with Darwen Council has submitted a strategic outline business case for 
funding approval.  The consultants Jacobs have undertaken an independent 
assessment of the strategic outline business case on behalf of the Lancashire 
Enterprise Partnership.  Jacobs are satisfied that the project has been developed to 
the expected standard and recommend that funding approval be granted.

The total cost for the scheme is £3.96m (2018 Quarter 1 prices), funded through a 
maximum £3.44m contribution from the Local Growth Fund through the Lancashire 
Growth Deal and a £520,000 contribution from Blackburn with Darwen Council.  The 
local contribution amounts to 10% of total scheme total cost.  The council's S151 letter 
confirming the council's commitment to fund the local contribution together with any 
overspend is outstanding. However, it is expected to be received prior to the LEP 
Board meeting on the 26 June 2018.  The council expects construction to take place 
between June 2018 and May 2019.

The scheme is predicted to deliver very high value for money with a benefit to cost 
ratio of 9.97, and has the potential to generate a further £630,000 (2010 prices 
discounted) of wider economic benefits on average per annum over the 60-year 
appraisal period arising from the development of employment sites that the scheme 
will unlock.  Jacobs' report is attached as Appendix 'A'.

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

None.

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate 

N/A

Page 6



Jacobs U.K. Limited
Registered Office: 1180 Eskdale Road, Winnersh, Wokingham, RG41 5TU, UK
Registered in England and Wales No. 2594504 Jacobs_MemoA4.doc

Memorandum

Date 17th May 2018

To Transport for Lancashire (TfL)

From Jacobs

Subject Furthergate Link Road

Introduction

Jacobs have undertaken a comprehensive review of the Strategic Outline Business Case
(May 2018) produced by Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council in support of the
Furthergate Link Road Scheme.

The review findings should be used to inform a recommendation on whether the scheme
should be granted Full Approval status at the LEP Board meeting in June 2018.

Methodology

The Strategic Outline Business Case has been reviewed and assessed against the
Department for Transport’s (DfT) guidance on Transport Business Cases (January 2013).
This approach shows whether schemes:

· are supported by a robust case for change that fits with wider public policy objectives
– the ‘strategic case’;

· demonstrate value for money – the ‘economic case’;
· are commercially viable – the ‘commercial case’;
· are financially affordable – the ‘financial case’; and
· are achievable – the ‘management case’.

A Red-Amber-Green (RAG) assessment has been undertaken on each of the five cases in
order to:

a. Highlight any keys risks associated with the successful delivery of the project in
accordance with the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership’s Accountability Framework.

b. Identify any areas of the Strategic Outline Business Case where there is insufficient
evidence to demonstrate that the scheme has followed DfT best practice for the
development of a major scheme.

c. Ensure the scheme aligns positively with the LEP’s Strategic Economic Plan.

The completed RAG assessment has been appended to this document as Appendix A.

As part of the review process, Jacobs have actively engaged with the scheme promoter
(Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council) and their consultants (Capita) in order to seek
clarification on any key issues associated with the Strategic Outline Business Case. The
RAG assessment summarises the iterative process which has been adopted to update the
Strategic Outline Business Case to ensure that it is compliant with the LEP’s Accountability
Framework and DfT best practice guidance.

Appendix A

Page 7



Memorandum
(Continued)

         Page 2 of 4

Jacobs U.K. Limited Jacobs_MemoA4.doc

Assurance Timeline

Ø 15th February 2018 – Initial meeting between Jacobs, Blackburn with Darwen
Council and Capita

Ø 18th April 2018 – Draft documents received

Ø 25th April 2018 – First full suite of documents received

Ø 01st May 2018 – Comments log produced and issued to Capita and Blackburn with
Darwen

Ø April/May 2018 – A period of engagement then took place between Jacobs
(independent assurer), Blackburn with Darwen Council (scheme promoter) and
Blackburn with Darwen’s consultants (Capita) in order to address issues

Scheme Description

The Furthergate scheme involves the construction of a new link road between the Red
Lion Roundabout and Gorse Street, running parallel to the A678 Burnley road (as shown
in the figure below). At its North Eastern end, the new link will tie into the existing section
of carriageway which currently forms a fifth arm of the Red Lion Roundabout which was
constructed as part of the Pennine Reach Scheme. At its South-Western end, the
proposed link road will tie into the existing A678 Burnley Road approximately 130m to the
North of the A678 Furthergate signalised junction. The scheme is promoted by Blackburn
with Darwen Borough Council (BwDBC). The scheme is one of three being progressed as
part of the “Pennine Gateway” corridor improvements.

Page 8



Memorandum
(Continued)

         Page 3 of 4

Jacobs U.K. Limited Jacobs_MemoA4.doc

Ø 5th June 2018 – TfL meeting at which the scheme is seeking a funding
recommendation

Ø 26th June 2018 – LEP board meeting where the scheme will seek approval for a
written decision

Key Points

Scheme Cost - The total investment cost is £3.96m, including £0.78m risk. Growth Deal
funding of £3.44m is requested from the LEP to contribute towards the scheme.

Funding – BwDBC have stated they will commit to funding the balance between the
allocated Growth Deal Funding (£3.44m) and the scheme cost (£3.96m) and any cost
overruns. However, a letter from their Section 151 officer letter has not yet been received.

Scheme BCR - The Economic Case for the scheme is strong, with the analysis presented
showing that the scheme has a Benefit to Cost Ratio (BCR) of 9.97, which represents ‘Very
High’ Value for Money (i.e. a BCR > 4.0).

GVA Benefits – While there are no scheme dependent development sites there are a
number of sites that will be developed sooner should the scheme be progressed. As such
the scheme is forecast to generate £0.631m of net GVA benefits on average per annum to
the local economy, arising from the sites being developed earlier than would the case
without the scheme.

Programme - It is intended that the works will be complete by May 2019, with construction
due to begin in June 2018.

LEP Economic Outputs

Originally, the Furthergate scheme was submitted as part of the Pennine Gateway Project,
for which the LEP sought to receive Growth Deal funding. A total economic output from all
three schemes which was used to rank the Pennine Gateway Project alongside other
schemes seeking funding. In order to inform decision makers, a comparison of the
Furthergate Link Road Scheme’s economic output against the total expected for the Pennine
Gateway is provided in Table 1.

Table 1 - Economic Output Comparison
Economic Output Furthergate Pennine Gateway Forecast

Total
Housing units Nil 870
Private sector investment £71m £125m
Jobs 438 3,750
Commercial floor space 17,500 m2 64,000 m2

GVA £236m £414.7m

Annual cumulative totals of these outputs are provided in Table 2.

Page 9



Memorandum
(Continued)

         Page 4 of 4

Jacobs U.K. Limited Jacobs_MemoA4.doc

Table 2 - Furthergate Link Road Annual Economic Output

Year

Floorspace (sqm) Jobs GVA
(£,000s)Scheme

Dependent Accelerated TOTAL Scheme
Dependent Accelerated TOTAL

2021 - 11,500 11,500 - 288 288 £673.8

2025 10,500 19,500 30,000 263 488 750 £7,932.6

2026 17,500 59,500 77,000 438 1,488 1,925 £12,026.0

2027 17,500 67,500 85,000 438 1,688 2,125 £17,848.4

It should be noted that while no jobs have been directly attributed to the scheme in the GVA
assessment presented in the SOBC there is 17,500 m2 of floor space and 438 jobs
potentially unlocked by the scheme (hence their inclusion in Table 1). The development of
the four sites that make up this floor space is subject to uncertainty, and as such has not
been included in the GVA calculation.

Conclusions

Jacobs recommend that the Furthergate scheme should be granted ‘Full Approval’
status, to enable construction to begin in June 2018 provided a letter from BwDBC’s Section
151 officer is received stating that they will guarantee the local contribution to the scheme
and will cover cost overruns.

Appendices

Appendix A - RAG Assessment

Page 10



Scheme Name: Pennine Reach - Furthergate

Scheme Description:
A new link road in Blackburn to provide an alternative to the A678 and access to potential development land

The purpose of this review is to examine the evidence base for the above scheme in order to identify any gaps
Additional work can then be undertaken on the scheme to ensure the business case for the scheme is comprehensive, which will limit the risk of future challenges.

Business
Case Criteria Evidence RAG

Analysis
Recommendations
(Jacobs 01.05.18)

Promoter Response
(Capita 03/05/2018) RAG

Analysis

Response
(Jacobs 08.05.18)

Promoter Response
(Capita 09/05/2018) RAG

Analysis

Response
(Jacobs 11.05.18)

Comment on updated SOBC
(Jacobs 16.05.18) RAG

Analysis

Existing arrangements for the provision of
services

Include a description of the current situation
Description of the current situation is included in
section 1.1 and 1.2

Can services be better utilised, or are more
fundamental changes required?
Business case confirms that fundamental changes
are required, as per section 1.2 and 1.7

What are the constraints?
The only constraints mentioned in the report are to
do with time and programem as outlined in section
1.5

A Document should be rebadged as a Strategic Outline
Business Case (and not a Outline Business Case)

Are there no physical constraints on the scheme (land
ownership, housing, severing roads etc.)? This will surely
be relevant (given the discussions with Tesco around
taking their land etc.) for the scheme and potentially for
alternatives.

The document has been updated and rebadged as a
Strategic Outline Business Case.

Constraints on the scheme delivery (including
physical constraints) are provided in Appendix M of
the document.  The SOBC has however been
updated to highlight in Section 1.5 that there are no
land ownership constraints.

G N/A G G

Problem Identification

How have the problems been identified?
Problems are identified in Section 1.1 and 1.2

Provide quantification of the extent of the
problems
Not provided as such

A The evidence presented in the SOBC is a screenshot of
traffic conditions from google maps and a description of
what was gathered for a previous TA. It would be good to
have a quantified figure from this data. Eg, junction is at
x% capacity, given that the report mentions that the
junctions are operating close to capacity or are forecast
to operate over capacity it is likely these figures are
available..

The SOBC has been updated to provide
quantification of the extent of the problems in Section
1.1.

G N/A G G

The need for investment

Why is the scheme needed now?
There doesn't appear to be any indication of why
the scheme is required now

R The SOBC has been updated to explain why the
scheme is needed, based on the existing capacity
issues on the local highway network, as per Section
1.1.

G N/A G G

Impact of scheme not being delivered

Impact on transport network, economy, future
development, other schemes etc.
Section 1.2 provides a small summary of the
impact of not delivering the scheme

A Suggest that further information including quantification of
future traffic conditions could be taken from the TA
described elsewhere, eg, junctions will be at X% of
capacity

The SOBC has been updated to provide
quantification of the extent of the problems in Section
1.1 and more details have been added to Section
1.2.

G N/A G G

Study Area / affected population

Include a plan showing the scheme location.
Provide a description / plan of targeted
population.
Scheme location shown Figure 1.1.1 and 1.1.2,
No proper plan showing scheme location
Scheme drawings shown in Appendix R

A Would be useful if the proposed location of the scheme
was shown clearly in the SOBC where the scheme is
described with other key points highlighted, eg M65
Junction 6. Currently there is only a loaction plan for the
current low speeds/

Scheme location plan has been included as Appendix
A in the updated SOBC and Section 1.1.

A Scheme layout is shown in Appendix A,
however, SOBC document itself doesn’t
contain a plan or map of the scheme. Without
looking at appendix A there is no context
behind figures 1.1.1 and 1.1.2 as to how they
relate to the scheme.

Two figures have been added to
SOBC Section 1.1, Figure 1.1.1
shows Furthergate Link Road
location and Figure 1.1.2 shows
Furthergate Link Road indicative
layout.

G The SOBC has been updated to
include map and layout

G

Scheme Objectives

What are the aims of the proposed scheme, and
how do they address all the problems identified?
Schme Objectives are covered in 1.3

A Overall objectives look appropriate for the scheme and
each would be deemed SMART. My only issue is that the
timebound element described refers to the 60 year
appraisal period. This should be more about when you
expect to have met this objective. Eg, we will reduce the
reliability of journey times by x within 5 years of scheme
opening etc.

Section 1.3 has been updated to address the
comment.

G N/A G G

Strategic Fit
(e.g. DfT's business plan and wider
government objectives).

How does the scheme contribute to key
objectives, including wider transport and
government objectives?
Fit with national, regional and local policy is
included in section 1.1

G G G G

Option Identification

How were potential problems identified?
Curent problems are shown in 1.1 and 1.2. Future
problems are covered in 1.2 also

Evidence that alternative options (covering a
range of different modes) were considered
Options Appraisal Report included in as Appendix
H

A Options presented in the SOBC appear to be for specific
part of the route rather than alternatives to a new offline
link, and I think this is a gap, for example why aren't
measures to improve the existing A678 included as an
option? This could be easily ruled out due to constraints
with the busy road and building frontages preventing
major improvements etc.

All potential options have been explored as part of
the initial scheme development as part of the
Penning Reach project.

A I still think some text around this needs to be
included in the SOBC and/or OAR as
currently both just assume the options are
around how a link road can be delivered
rather than alternatives to a link road

Text has been added to Section
1.7. Option 0 has been included in
the strategic assessment of
alternative options.  Option o has
been eliminated at the initial stage
of the sifting process and no
detailed technical assessments or
appraisals have been carried out.
The details are however provided
on consultation, indicative cost,
impact against strategic objectives
and rationale for rejection of this
option.

G There is now sufficient
consideration of an alternative ot
the link road

G

Early Assessment and Sifting
Methodology for sifting options
Table 1.7 includes the sifting of options and is
considered logical

A This is considered appropriate, however, as mentioned
above there is potentially some options ignored that could
be challenged.

All potential options have been explored as part of
the initial scheme development as part of the
Penning Reach project.

A See above See above G As above G

Identification of short listed options

How were the potential options shortlisted?
What were the other shortlisted options?
Initial work was likely done for previous scheme
and may need to be collated in the SOBC.
Some information around scheme development is
included in Appendix H

A Appendix H outlines what potential junction arrangements
were considered and why those selected were
considered as best options for the new link and the
rationale is logical. However, as above there aren't any
"alternatives" considered to an offline link.

All potential options have been explored as part of
the initial scheme development as part of the
Penning Reach project.

A See above See above G As above G

Consideration given to the economic,
environmental and social benefits of the
possible approaches

What are the high-level strategic and operational
benefits envisaged? How do they link to the
objectives of the scheme?
High level benefits of the scheme are listed
throughout sections 1.1 and 1.2. Section 1.3 links
benefits to the objectives

G G G G

Consultation / stakeholder engagement

Provide details of any consultation events or
stakeholder engagement that has taken place / is
planned?
Who was consulted?
Include consultation results where available.
A summary of the public consultation event carried
out on 19th April is included as Appendix G

A As scheme promoter (and therefore the body carrying out
stakeholder engagement) it isn't accurate to include them
as a key stakeholder in the scheme. There will also need
to be consideration of landowners, business owners etc.
in the area as well as elected officials.

Public consultation (appendix G)has been carried out and
should be referred to here in 1.6

Section 1.6 has been updated to reflect the
comment.

The details of public consultation are added in
Section 1.6.

G G G

STRATEGIC

\\europe.jacobs.com\Leeds\Projects\B2000000\B2327505 - TfL Major Schemes Programme\3 JC Tech Work\3.4 Furthergate\RAG\Final RAG\Furthergate Scheme - Business Case Assurance RAG Analysis (17.05.18) - large text

P
age 11



Criteria Evidence RAG
Analysis

Recommendations
(Jacobs 01.05.18)

Promoter Response
(Capita 03/05/2018) RAG

Analysis

Response
(Jacobs 08.05.18)

Promoter Response
(Capita 09/05/2018) RAG

Analysis

Response
(Jacobs 11.05.18)

Comment on updated SOBC
(Jacobs 16.05.18) RAG

Analysis

Preferred Option

How was the preferred option identified?
Options have been assessed for their
performance in terms of delay and junction
capacity.

Reasons why it was the  preferred option.
Reasons behind the selected options from the
shortlist are included in Section 1.7 and the
appended OAR

G G G G

Traffic Modelling work undertaken

Details of any traffic modelling work which has
been undertaken.
Details of traffic modelling including in BCR TN
appendix

Results of modelling work

Has the need for any further traffic modelling work
been identified?

N/A To be covered in Economic Case with references to
appropriate appendices

The SOBC has been updated accordingly. N/A N/A N/A

Level of public support considered?

What are the attitudes of key groups (e.g. the
general public, residents, businesses and wider
stakeholders) to the proposed scheme?
Information behind current consultation is included
in Appendix G

A Public Consultation has been carried out and a summary
is provided in Appendix G. However, this does not give an
idea of the level of public support

Levels of public support can be demonstrated
through the feedback received during the Pennine
Reach consultations.

G G G

Key risks and constraints identified?

What are the main risks associated with delivering
the scheme?
Number of risks included in Section 1.5 Delivery
Constraints - further information in risk register

Include a Risk Register containing appropriate
mitigation measures.
Risk Register is appended

A Acknowledged that Risk register is likey to change (and
potentially lead to changes to other cases) as scheme
costs are received etc.

Risk Register is a live document. A Awaiting final costs and update of risk
register

SOBC has been updated with
tendered costs

G Accepted SOBC has been updated with
tendered costs

G

Connectivity with other schemes
assessed?

How does the scheme impact on other planned
schemes?
What is the overall level of impact in combination
with other connected schemes?
Scheme completes a previous aspiration that was
stopped at including a single junction and is part of
a package of schemes called "Pennine Reach"
that will combine to improve connectivity across
the district.

g N/A g g g

Outline approach to assessing value for
money.

Evidence of any VfM assessment which has
already been undertaken.
VfM Methodology is presented in Appendix I - VfM
Methodology and summarised in Chapter 3.

A Appendix I  has a number of comments within it. Some
comments are included in the text below, however, the
final version of the appendix may have different
information

The comments were left in the Appendix I to provide
an audit trail of comments. All comments were
addressed in the initial issue of the BCR TN and
within the SOBC.

N/A N/A N/A

Appraisal Summary Table

Has an AST been produced?
AST Provided in table 2.5

A As mentioned above, the scheme is not directly linked to
any jobs, unless the jobs can only be created with the
scheme they should not be included here under
regeneration or wider impacts. Other comments above
may change scoring in the AST.

See above A As mentioned above, needs to be brought out
in the technical note and SOBC that the
scheme enables development to come
through earlier than if the link road wasn't
delivered and explain that this is where any
benefits will come from rather than the full
benefits of the jobs.

GVA assessment has been
updated

A No clear evidence that this has
been done, and not mentioned in
the SOBC.

GVA assessment has been updated
in line with comments

G

BCR

Details of any economic appraisal work which has
already been undertaken.
Provide an indication of the likely VfM (using
relevant schemes to benchmark where
appropriate) where VfM assessment not been
completed yet.
This information is provided in the BCR Technical
Note

A The comments above have an impact on the overall VfM
and assessment, however, there are additional comments
on the economic assessment.
- Why has 30% Risk contingency been used? WebTAG
Unit A1.2 Section 3.5 shows that LA Roach schemes at
SOBC stage should have 44% OB applied, this should be
applied on top of an allowance for risk built into scheme
cost.
- We note that sensitivity tests have been carried out
based on a change in speed limit on the link road, traffic
distribution and zero growth but what about High and Low
growth scenarios as per WebTAG Unit M4 Section 4.2?

30% risk contingency is based on the experience of a
similar range of projects delivered within BwDBC and
it is broadly based on the value provided within the
Quantified Risk Assessment.

As a zero growth sensitivity test has been carried out,
it is considered not necessary to undertake a Low
growth sensitivity test. As stated in the comment on
the Economic appraisal above a higher growth rate is
likely to yield greater benefits and as the core
scheme appraisal and a range of sensitivity tests are
indicating high or very high value for money a High
growth scenario is not considered necessary.

A Accepted that 30% risk is approximately that
within the QRA. However, in line with
WebTAG Unit A1.2 Section 3.5 Optimism
bias should be added on top of the scheme
cost (which includes an allowance for risk). As
an early stage highway scheme this means
an allowance of 44% for OB. We accept that
this is very high when combined with a 30%
risk assessment, however, the scheme BCR
is very high so it is unlikely to affect VfM
banding. There is some additional guidance
(https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/gove
rnment/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_
data/file/191507/Optimism_bias.pdf) where
there is discussion on reducing OB.

Accepted that both tests may be considered
unnecessary given other sensitivity tests
undertaken. However, as part of guidance
text similar to that included to the left should
be included when discussion sensitivty tests
to show why the WebTAG recommended
tests are not being carried out.

Section 2.3 has been updated to
include explanation for 'high growth'
and 'low growth' scenarios.

A Optimism bias has still not been
included in the SOBC. Looking at
Appendix L, OB of 3% appears to
be included. Why? This should be
44%, and it should be detailed in
the SOBC

Optimism Bias of 3% used to reflect
that costs have been provided by a
consultant (equivalent of what
would happen at FBC stage as per
WebTAG)

G

1. No action required.
2. Section 3.4 of BCR TN has been
updated and Section 2.1 of SOBC

Consideration of economic,
environmental, social and distributional

impacts.

Qualitative / Quantitative assessment of the likely
impact of the scheme

This information is provided in the BCR Technical

There are some queries and comments on the
assessment of the scheme:
- Why has the highest growth rate been used? This will

A

STRATEGIC

GVA assessment has been updated
in line with comments

G

ECONOMIC

1. Growth Rates
As has been mentioned, the difference in traffic
growth rates is fairly similar when comparing the BwD

1. Agree that a sensitivity test of zero growth
could be used regarding growth rates.

A A 1. Accepted
2. Accepted
3. Accepted

\\europe.jacobs.com\Leeds\Projects\B2000000\B2327505 - TfL Major Schemes Programme\3 JC Tech Work\3.4 Furthergate\RAG\Final RAG\Furthergate Scheme - Business Case Assurance RAG Analysis (17.05.18) - large text

P
age 12



Criteria Evidence RAG
Analysis

Recommendations
(Jacobs 01.05.18)

Promoter Response
(Capita 03/05/2018) RAG

Analysis

Response
(Jacobs 08.05.18)

Promoter Response
(Capita 09/05/2018) RAG

Analysis

Response
(Jacobs 11.05.18)

Comment on updated SOBC
(Jacobs 16.05.18) RAG

Analysis

Scheme Cost

Please provide as much detail as possible,
including:
- scheme development costs
- itemised construction costs
- running costs
- maintenance costs
- range cost estimates
How were the scheme costs calculated?
Scheme costs are included in Section 3.1, 3.2 and
3.3. A supporting report is included as Appendix L.
No information provided around how costs have
been developed.

A Scheme cost estimates are included and it is
acknowledged that these will be updated on receipt of
contractor quotes.

However, there is no information about how the current
cost estimates have been developed, the cost appendix
is just a table. (more information is provided in the M&E
report where the scheme cost is broken down).

The cost appendix has been updated to include the
details of how the scheme costs are broken down.

A We have not received this appendix (email
from Walter Aspinal on 08.05.18 only
includes updated SOBC document.

Cost appendix has been updated
with tendered costs

G Accepted Cost appendix has been updated
with tendered costs

G

Funding Arrangements

Detail the funding sources and values which have
been outlined.
Funding is intended to be split between BwD and
TfL.

Outline any potential risks to securing funding.
Potential risks to funding included in section 3.4

A Funding Arrangments and split are outlined in Section
3.3. However, scheme costs will likely change.

Currently only a draft setion 151 officer letter is attached,
this will need signed off by BwD to cover overruns as
required by TfL's assurance framework.

A final S151 officer letter will be provided follow
receipt of tender costs.

A Accepted - will remain amber until final costs
are established

expecting s151 letter A Noted No Change, Awaiting S151 letter A

Key Risks

Please provide a risk register including mitigation
measures.
Risk Register included as Appendix E

Has any sensitivity analysis been undertaken?
What are the results?
Some sensitivity tests have been carried out as
per the economic case.

A Risk Register is included. However section 3.4 is
highlighted in yellow and the numbers there are not
shown in the register and this number does not match the
30% used in scheme costs.

The 30% is a rough estimate based on QRA value
and will updated to match the final costs.

A Accepted - will remain amber until final costs
are established

SOBC has been updated with
tendered costs

G Accepted SOBC has been updated with
tendered costs

G

COMMERCIAL Is there a robust contracting and
procurement strategy?

Outline the intended procurement strategy.
Outline procurement strategy shown in 4.2

How was the proposed procurement approach
developed?
BwD's existing Contractor and Development
Frmework has been proposed.

A Chapter 4 covers the financial case with gaps left to
complete on appointment of contractor.

The section will be updated accordingly. A Accepted - will remain amber until final costs
are established

SOBC has been updated with
tendered costs

G Accepted SOBC has been updated with
tendered costs

G

Key risks and constraints identified?

What are the main risks associated with delivering
and implementing the scheme?
Include a Risk Register containing appropriate
mitigation measures.
Risk Register to supplied as Appendix E

A As mentioned previously the Risk Register does not
match the figures in the financial case for risk allowance
which in turn does not match the 30% allowance in
scheme cost.

See above A Accepted - will remain amber until final costs
are established

SOBC has been updated with
tendered costs

G Accepted SOBC has been updated with
tendered costs

G

Delivery Programme

Please include indicative timescales for:
- Scheme Development
- Design
- Procurement
- Construction

Key dates in programme provided in Section 5.3 -
Full Programme included as Appendix N.

A Key dates provided in SOBC. With detailed programme in
appendix. Only worry would be that "construction" is one
item in the programme but is the longest duration.

Detailed programme will be provided by the
appointed contractor and included within the final
submission.

A Accepted - will remain amber until final costs
are established

SOBC has been updated with
tendered costs

G Accepted SOBC has been updated with
tendered costs

G

Governance / Assurance work

Who is in charge? What is the allocation of roles
and responsibilities? Is there a Project Board?
Project board is included in Section 5.1, however,
no names are mentioned. The Organogram
(Appendix O) contains Names

What control measures will be put in place to
ensure the scheme development process is
managed suitably?
Assurance and Approvals Plan included in Section
5.4. Project Management approach outlined in
Section 5.9

Has a SGAR been undertaken / scheduled?
Internal review held, summary provided in
Appendix.

A Names from Appendix O should be brought into section
5.1.

All names are provided within Appendix O. A These names should be brough into Section
5.1, for example replacing "Proect Director
Design Delivery" with "Andrew Brown" so that
the SOBC can be read as a stand alone
document if required.

Section 5.1 of the SOBC has been
updated

A Only Andrew Brown has been
included. Who is the representative
for the BwD Growth and
Development board? And for the
Transport Strategy / Programmes
and Highways? If these cannot be
named, at least the table should be
given a different header that
"Representative", as I would expect
a representative to be a named
person, not a board, etc.

Updated in line with comments G

Evidence of similar projects that have
been successful.

Provide details of similar projects and their
successfulness.
Details of similar projects included in Section 5.1

G G G G

Who is the client / sponsor?
Include details of the client / sponsor of the
scheme.
BwD are the scheme promoter

A Section 151 letter will be required Will be provided A Accepted - will remain amber until Final
section 151 letter received.

expecting s151 letter A Noted No Change, Awaiting S151 letter A

Fall back Plans

Do alternative schemes exist? Is there a lower
cost alternative?
Some lower cost options have been considered
(Section 1.7), however, these all appear
predicated on a link road being the end product

A As with above comments regarding options it appears that all options are predicated on delivery of the offline link road with no consideration to alternatives.See above. A See Comment in cell J28 See comment in cell K28 G Accepted See comment in cell K28 G

Arrangements for monitoring and
evaluating the intervention.

What will constitute success for the project, and
how will it be measured?
Details of M&E provided in Section 5.8 and
accompanying M&E Report

A One section of the M&E report is highlighted in yellow.

In addition TfL's monitoring requirements are described in
Section 3.1 of the report, however, no detail is provided
on the DfT's requirements and what will be
monitored/reviewed.

We envisage that TfL's monitoring requirements
would reflect those provided by the DfT.

A While it is accepted that most metrics
required by DfT will be covered by monitoring
of TfL requirements for clarity some
description of what will be used to monitor the
DfT metrics should included similar to the
approach for the TfL metrics.

Section 5.8 of the SOBC has been
updated to include the standard
measures set out by DfT, which are
required to be monitored. A
monitoring and evaluation
engagement process is also
included. M&E report has been
updated to provide more details on
the standard measures set out by
DfT.

G Accepted Section 5.8 of the SOBC has been
updated to include the standard
measures set out by DfT, which are
required to be monitored. A
monitoring and evaluation
engagement process is also
included. M&E report has been
updated to provide more details on
the standard measures set out by
DfT.

G

MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL

\\europe.jacobs.com\Leeds\Projects\B2000000\B2327505 - TfL Major Schemes Programme\3 JC Tech Work\3.4 Furthergate\RAG\Final RAG\Furthergate Scheme - Business Case Assurance RAG Analysis (17.05.18) - large text

P
age 13



P
age 14



LEP – Sub Committee

LEP - Transport for Lancashire Committee

Private and Confidential: No

Date: Tuesday, 5 June 2018

Transforming Cities Fund

Report Author: Dave Colbert, Tel: 01772 534501, Specialist Advisor Transport Planning
dave.colbert@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The government announced the £1.7bn Transforming Cities Fund in the 2017 Autumn 
Budget, of which £840m is available on a competitive basis to city regions outside 
London that are not mayoral combined authorities and that can demonstrate the 
strongest case for investment.  Submissions will need to provide evidence of high 
workday as opposed to residential populations, with bids focused on public transport, 
cycling and walking and smart technology solutions.  The deadline for submitting 
completed application forms is 23:59 on Friday 8th June 2018.  At the time of writing, 
bid preparation is very much work in progress.  The committee will therefore receive 
a verbal update at the meeting.

Recommendation

The committee is asked to note the contents of this report.

Background and Advice

The government announced the £1.7bn Transforming Cities Fund in the 2017 Autumn 
Budget.  It is part of the wider National Productivity Investment Fund and aimed at 
driving up productivity and spreading prosperity by investing in public and sustainable 
transport networks in England's larger city regions.  The fund also supports delivery of 
the government's Industrial Strategy, taking a place-based approach to investment in 
England's city regions.  The six mayoral combined authorities received half of the fund 
on a devolved, per capita basis; the remaining £840m is available on a competitive 
basis to other city regions outside London that can demonstrate the strongest case for 
investment.

Bids need to adopt a place-centric approach focused on intra-city connectivity; the 
government will not accept proposals that are largely rural in character.  Submissions 
will also need to provide evidence of high workday as opposed to residential 
populations.  Those city regions with workday populations above 200,000 will therefore 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



score most strongly, although there does not appear to be a bar to bids from smaller 
areas.  City region geographies do not need to reflect local authority boundaries.

Whilst the fund's focus is public transport, cycling and walking and smart technology 
solutions, the government is also interested in packages that will tackle skills, unlock 
housing and improve air quality.  Packages that include improvements to national 
railway stations and multi-modal hubs are also encouraged.  The government expects 
successful city regions to make use of relevant legislation such as the Bus Services 
Act 2017.

A key objective for the government is to make a small number of large investments to 
drive up connectivity to centres of employment.  Following an initial sift of bids, the 
government will select up to ten city regions to co-develop plans into packages of 
schemes that it will then competitively assess, with funding awarded to those that 
demonstrate the greatest improvements to productivity and offer best value for money.  
This approach is similar to that adopted for Housing Infrastructure Fund Forward 
Funding applications, but there may be an additional requirement to 'pitch' proposals 
to a panel who will ultimately make recommendations as to final settlements.

First stage evaluation will focus on definition and challenges, who and where and 
ambition for change, not specific schemes.  The government will be seeking evidence 
of the case for investment, the wider fit with other stakeholders including local 
enterprise partnerships and investment programmes, and the ambition of a city region 
to improve specific routes.  Successful city regions will also need to demonstrate clear 
prioritisation and that significant investment on a small number of corridors can have 
a big impact.

Funding is capital and available over the four year period 2018/19 to 2021/22.  There 
is no cap on the size of packages, but allocations to mayoral combined authorities 
were in the range £59m to £250m.  The government regards additional funding raised 
through local contributions or from private investment to be an advantage.  Bidders 
will need to build in monitoring and evaluation capability from the outset.

The deadline for submitting completed application forms is 23:59 on Friday 8th June 
2018.  At the time of writing, bid preparation is very much work in progress.  The 
committee will therefore receive a verbal update at the meeting.

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

None.

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate:

N/A

Page 16


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 28 March 2018
	5 Furthergate Link Road Funding Application
	Appendix A JACOBS Reportto
	Furthergate Scheme - Appendix A -

	6 Transforming Cities Fund

